


12.Consent Agenda — Attachment #12

All items below are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. No
separate discussion will be held except on request of a member of the Board of
Commissioners.

(A) Minutes of the July 13, 2021 regular meeting

(B) Budget Amendments #20-31

(C) Tax releases

(D)Monthly ad valorem tax collection report — no action necessary

13.Appointments
14.Closed session as allowed under NCGS (if needed)

15.Adjourn/Recess




































STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
NON-EMERGENCY TRANSPORTATION

COUNTY OF MACON SERVICES CONTRACT

THIS TRANSPORTATION SERVICES CONTRACT, made and entered into this Ist day of July 2021, by
and between ABT Secure Solutions, LLC dba Mountain Area Medical Transport (hereinafter referred to

as “Provider") and Macon County a North Carolina County and a body politic, (hereinafter referred to as
"Client).

WHEREAS, Client desires to enter into a contract with Provider to provide non emergency
transportation services in the State of North Carolina; and

WHEREAS, Provider agrees to provide Client such non-emergency transportation services under
the terms and conditions set forth herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein made, the
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Definitions.
a) "Contract” shall mean this Transportation Services Contract, including all
exhibits hereto.
b) "Participant” shall mean an individual receiving non-emergency
transportation services by Provider as determined and requested by Client
¢) "LME/MCO" shall mean the local nianagement entity-managed care
organization which includes Macon County, NC.

2. Scope of Services. Provider shall provide non-emergency transportation services to Participants
upon the request of Client, as set forth in Exhibit A.

3. Rates. Client shall be charged by Provider at the rates as set forth in Exhibit B, attached hereto
and incorporated herein.. Provider shall not be responsible for additional costs that are incurred
during transportation of a Participant that are not set forth in Exhibit B, including but not limited
to medical emergencies. Provider shall invoice Client for all trips within sixty (60) days of
perforinance. Invoices shall be paid by Client within thirty (30} days of receipt thereof.

4. Term. Unless terminated sooner as provided in this Contract, the term of this Contract shall be
from the date hereof until and including June 30, 2022.

5. Termination. The Client may terminate this Contract for any reason and without cause or penalty
at any time upon thirty (30} days prior written notice to the other parties. Notice shall be served
under this contract by registered mail, certified mail or by other means. Notwithstanding, if at any



time Provider's license and/or certification is revoked, this Agreement shall terminate
immediately. In the event the Contract is terminated, Client shall pay Provider the outstanding
amount for work performed in accordance with the terms of this Contract through the effective
date of termination.

Provider may terminate the contract for any reason and without cause or penalty upon written
notice to Client. Notice shall be served by registered mail, certified mail, or by other means.

Insurance. Provider agrees to keep and maintain for the duration of this Contract, including but
not limited to commercial general liability, automobile liability, as is necessary to provide
coverage for losses and liabilities arising out of the acts and/or omissions of Provider in the
performance of this Contract. Insurance coverages shall be in the amounts that are acceptable to
Client, the minimum of which shall not be less than the following:

a. Automobile liability insurance:
i) Vehicles with a capacity of more than 10 seats: $1,000,000.00
combined single limit coverage per occurrence; and
ii) Vehicles with a capacity of up to 10 seats: $ 1,000,000.00 combined
single limit coverage per occurrence.

b. Commercial General Liability: not less than $1,000,000.00

This is a material term to this contract the breach of which will entitle the Client to terminate
this Contract immediately and without penalty. Provider shall furnish Client with certificates of
insurance for each type of insurance described herein, with Client named as an additional
insured on all coverages. In the event of cancellation, substantial changes or nonrenewal,
Provider shall give Client at least thirty (30) days prior written notice, and cause insurance
carriers to notify Client in advance of cancellation or termination of coverage.

Indemnification. Provider agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Client and its

respective officers, employees and agents from and against any and all claims, losses, damages,
liabilities, costs, expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees), judgments, or obligations
{collectively, "Claims"), arising from or in connection with Provider's negligent acts/omissions
or willful misconduct, including those of its officials, officers, or employees in the performance
of this Contract.

To the extent allowed by North Carolina law, Client agrees to indemnify and hold harmless
Provider and its respective officers, employees and agents {from and against any and all ¢claims,
losses, damages, liabilities, costs, expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees) judgments, or
obligations (collectively, "Claims"), arising froin or in connection with Client's negligent
acts/omissions or willful misconduct, including those of its officials, officers, or employees in
the perforinance of this Contract.

Immunity from Liability. The provisions of N.C. Gen. Stat. $$122C-210.1 and 122C
251 shall apply.



9. Provider's Responsibilities.

a. Provider shall be fully licensed and‘or certified as may be required by state, federal or local

laws and regulations in order to provide non-emergency transportation services under this
Contract.

b. Provider and its drivers shall comply with all state, federal or local laws, or

ordinances, codes, rules or regulations governing performance of this Contract, including but
not limited to all North Carolina laws pertaining to transport a respondent under involuntary
commitment proceedings.

(o]

Provider shall provide all drivers, attendants, vehicles and equipment necessary

for the performance of this Contract. Provider will be responsible for the assignment, control,
supervision and compensation of its drivers and attendants and insure that each complies with
all North Carolina laws pertaining to transportation of a respondent under involuntary
commitment proceedings.

d. Provider shall select drivers based on the criteria set forth in Provider's Standard
Operating Procedure, which includes but is not limited to, background checks and testing for
controlled substances.

¢. Provider and its drivers shall participate in the training for persons designated to provide
transportation and custody as set forth in the County's adopted involuntary commitment
transportation agreement; as amended, and/or the LME/MCO's community crisis services plan,
as required N.C. Gen, Stat. 122C 202.2(a) (3).

f. Provider and its drivers shall safely transport Participants in accordance with federal and state
law, Provider's Standard Operating Procedure, Client's involuntary commitment transportation
agreement and the LME/MCO's community crisis services plan.

g. Provider shall abide by the accident procedure standards set forth in Provider's
Standard Operating Procedure.

h. Provider shall ensure that all of its drivers and attendants are at all times properly
licensed for the vehicle he/she is operating, qualified and fit for duty to provide services at the
time services are provided.

i. Provider shall provide vehicles which are to be used in the performance of this Contract which
meet federal and state operating and maintenance standards for the vehicle.

j. Provider shall not divulge any confidential information of Participants obtained by Ciient without
the written consent of Client or except as required by a court of law or state or federal law.
Provider shall take all necessary steps to safeguard the confidentiality of such information in



confoninance with federal and state statutes and regulations.

k. Provider agrees to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act

R

1.

.

‘HIPA4" and "HITECH"), when and if applicable, during the performance of this Contract.

Provider agrees to maintain all fiscal records relating to this Contract in a manner so as to clearly
document Provider’s performance. Provider shall retain and keep accessible all the fiscal and other
records for a minimum of three (3) years following final payment and termination of this
Agreement, or until the conclusion of any controversy related to this Agreement, whichever is later.

To the extent feasible, Provider shall cause its drivers to dress in plain clothes and

travel in unmarked vehicles.

n. To the extent possible, Provider shall cause its drivers to advise respondents in involuntary

0.

commitment proceedings when taking them into custody that they are not under arrest and have not
committed a crime, but are being taken into custody and transported to receive treatment and for
their own safety and that of others.

Provider, in providing transportation of a respondent in an involuntary commitment proceeding,
shall if possible provide a driver who is the same sex as the respondent.

10. Client’s Responsibilities.

a.

Client shall provide Provider a copy of the involuntary commitment

transportation agreement, as adopted by the County, and the LME/MCO community crisis
services plan, in accordance with N.C. Gen. Stat. 122C-251. Client shall ensure Provider is
designated as an entity to provide all or parts of the custody and transportation required under
N.C. Gen. Stat. 122C-3 et seq.

Client shall determine and verify Participant's eligibility prior to scheduling or submitting
non-emergency transportation requests to Provider.

Client shall schedule reservations and/or submit daily reservation requests to Provider via
telephone or email which complies with HIPAA and HITECH.

Client shall comply with all federal, state or local laws or ordinances, codes,

rules or regulations governing the performance of this Contract.

Client shall provide Provider with all information needed for transportation of

Participant, including but not limited to, time and location of pick-up, location of drop-off,
identification of Participant, and known medical information of

Participant which may affect Participant while in transport.

Client shall not request transportation services by Provider for Participants

deemed violent and/or require restraint during transportation. Client shall not request
transportation services by Provider that require overnjght housing of

Participant.



g. Client agrees to provide Provider advance notice of at least 30 Minutes prior
to a requested pick up time of a Participant.

h.  Client shall provide Provider with all necessary paperwork and/or documents
necessary for the transportation of the individual.

i.  Client shall fill out an inventory form of any itemns transported with
Participant.

11. Entire Agreement. This Contract contains the entire agreement between the parties.

12. Severability. Should any provision or provisions contained in this Contract be
declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be void, unenforceable or illegal, such provision or
provisions shall be severable and the remaining provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect.

13. Governing Law. This Contract is entered into in North Carolina and shall be

construed under the statutes and laws of North Carolina.

14. Assignability. This Contract is not assignable by either party without the prior
written consent of the other party.

15. Amendments. This Contract may be amended with the consent of both parties, in

writing

16. Notices. Any notices required pursuant to the terms of this Contract shall be sent by

registered mail, certified mail, or hand-delivery to the principal place of business of each of the parties
hereto as specified below:

Provider:

ABT Secure Solutions LLC/dba Mountain Area Medical Transport

Also dba, Mountain Area Transport and Security

167 Sloan Rd Franklin, NC 28734

Client:

Macon County Sheriff: Robert Holland 1820 Lakeside Dr Franklin NC 28734: and
Macon County Manager: Derek Roland 5 West Main St. Franklin NC 28734

17. Business Associate Agreement, CLIENT and PROVIDER shall simultaneously with the execution of
this Non-Emergency Transportation Services Contract enter into a Business Associate Agreement in the

form attached hereto as Exhibit C.



18. Non-Fxclusive Contractual Arrangement. Nothing herein shall be construed to be an

exclusive transportation contract whereby Provider is entitled to handle all non emergency transportation
needs of the Client.

19. Joinder By Macon County Sheriff. The Macon County Sheriff has joined in the
entry and execution of this Medical Services Contract to signify his agreement and approval

of the same and all parties hereto specifically agree that the Macon County Sheriff is an
additional intended beneficiary of this Medical Services Contract.

20. Independent Contractor, Provider is an independent contractor and none of its
employees shall be considered employees of the Client.

21. E-Verify, Each Party hereto shall comply with the requirements of Article 2 of

Chapter 64 of the General Statutes. Further, if any party hereto utilizes a subcontractor,
such party shall require the subcontractor to comply with the requirements of Article 2 of
Chapter 64 of the General Statutes. [remainder of page intentionally lefi blank - signatures
on following page]



'IN WITNESS WHEREFORE, the parties hereto have made and executed this Contract as of

the day and year first above written.

ABT SECURE SOLUTIONS, LLC DBA MOUNTAIN AREA TRANSPORT

AND SECURITY, PROVIDER

BY:
Name:
Authorized Member/Manager

Macon COUNTY, CLIENT
Macon County Sherift: Robert
Holland

By:
Robert Holland, Macon County
Sheriff

Macon County Manager: Derek Roland

By:
Derek Roland
County Manager

ATTEST

Clerk of Superior Court Macon
County Board of Commissioners

PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE

This instrument has been pre-audited
in the manner required by the Local
Government Budget and  Fiscal
Control Act.

Thisthe  day of 20

Macon County Finance Officer

(COUNTY SEAL)



STATE OF

COUNTY OF
L, a Notary Public for said County and State do hereby
certify that » Member/Manager of ABT Secure Solutions, llc, dba Mountain Area

Medical Transport, a limited liability company, personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged that
he/she as Member/Manager, being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing on behalf of the Limited
Liability Company.

Witness my hand and official seal this day of , 20

Notary Public
Notary Public's printed or typed name
My Commission Expires:
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON
I , Notary Public for Macon County, North

Carolina, certify that Robert Holland, Sherift for Macon County, personally appeared before me this day and
acknowledged that he signed the foregoing document.

Witness my hand and official seal this day of , 20

Notary Public

Notary Public's printed or typed name
My Commission Expires:

NORTH CAROLINA
MACON COUNTY

L Notary Public for Macon County, North Carolina, certify that
» personally came before me this day and acknowledged that he is the
Clerk and/or Assistant of the Board of Commissioners of Macon County and that by authority duly given and
as the act of Macon County, the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by the County Manager, sealed
with its seal and attested by himself/herself such Assistant Clerk to the Board of Commissioners.

Witness my hand and official seal this __ day of , 20

Notary Public

Notary Public's printed or typed nanie
My Cemumission Expires:




EXHIBIT A - SCOPE OF WORK

Provider, as an independent contractor, shall safely and timely provide non-emergency transportation
services, by ground, of Participants upon the request of Client within the State of North Carolina, as
follows:

Provider will notify Client within 15 minutes of the request whether Provider is able to provide the
requested services.

Provider agrees to notify Client at the time a Participant is picked up by Provider at requested location,
dropped off at requested location and at any unscheduled stops during transportation of Participant.

Provider agrees to notify Client of any accidents and/or medical emergencies during transportation of
Participant, as soon as practicable.

Provider agrees that drivers and attendants will wear/display proper identification at all times during
transportation of Participant.

Provider agrees to provide services twenty-four hours per day, 365 days per year.



EXHIBIT B - RATE SHEET

Non-Emergency Medical Transportation

Hourly rate per person and mileage

e $27.00/hour for time driver is actually working
¢ $0.65/mile

Lodging, and meal expense is in addition to the stated rate for all trip(s) requiring overnight stay.

Rate is based on GSA Per Diemi Schedule

10



EXHIBIT C

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON

HIPAA BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

This HIPAA Business Associate Agreement (the “Agreement") is effective as of

, 20___ ('the "Effective Date" ) by and between Macon County and Macon County Sheriff
hereinafter referred to as ("Covered Entity™ ) and ABT Secure Solutions, LLC, a North Carolina LL.C
hereinafter referred to as (“Business Associate™).

WHEREAS, Business Associate may maintain, transmit, create or receive data for or from
_ Covered Entity that constitutes Protected Health Information {as defined at 45 CFR § 160.103 ) to
perform tasks on behalf of Covered Entity; and

WHEREAS, Covered Entity is or may be subject to the requirements of 42 U.S.C. 1320d ef seq.
enacted by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA™), the Health
Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (“HITECH” ) and the implementing
regulations set forth at 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 ( “HIPAA Regulations" ). As used herein, “PHI”
refers to Protected Health [nformation maintained, transmitted, created or received by Business Associate
for or from Covered Entity; and

WHEREAS, to the extent required by the HIPAA Regulations and applicable State Law, Business
Associate is or may be directly subject to certain privacy and security obligations and penalty provisions
of HIPAA, HITECH, the HIPAA Regulations and State Law.

NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

I. Business Associate may use and disclose PHI only as expressly permitted or required by this
Agreement or as required by law. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI as required to
perform its obligations under a Medical Services Contract between Clay County and Business
Associate ( “Service Agreement” ), a copy of which is attached to this Agreement, to perform
certain services as described in the Service Agreement, provided that Business Associate shall not
use or disclose PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of HIPAA Regulations if done
by Covered Entity. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Business Associate shall not
sell PHI or use or disclose PHI for the purposes of marketing or fundraising, as defined and
proscribed in the HIPAA Regulations, HITECH and applicable State Law. Business Associate
shall limit 1ts uses and disclosures of, and requests for, PHI (I) when practical, to the information
making up limited data ( as set forth at 45 CFR § 164.514 ); and (ii) in all other cases subject to
the requirements of 45 CFR § 164.502(b), to the minimum amount of PHI necessary to
accomplish the intended purpose of the use, disclosure or request. To the extent Covered Entity
notifies Business Associate of a restriction request granted by Covered Entity that would limit

11



Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI, Business Associate will comply with the
restriction. To the extent Business Associate is to carry out an obligation of Covered Entity under
the HIPAA Regulations, Business Associate shall comply with the requirements of HIPAA
Regulations that apply to Covered Entity in the performance of such obligation.

Business Associate agrees to use and maintain reasonable and appropriate administrative,
technical and physical safeguards to protect PHI from uses or disclosures not permitted by this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, maintaining policies and procedures to detect, prevent
or mitigate identity theft based on PHI or information derived from PHI. In addition, Business
Associate agrees to comply with the applicable requirements of 45 CFR Part 164, subpart C of
HIPAA Regulations with respect to electronic PHI and any guidance issued by the Secretary of
the Department of Health and Human Services ( "HHS” ). Business Associate specifically agrees
to employ multiple security mechanisms to ensure the confidentiality, integrity and availability of
all electronic PHI, including, but not limited to, authentication controls, authorization controls,
audit controls and encryption.

To the extent Business Associate becomes aware of or discovers any use or disclosure of PHI in
violation of this Agreement, any Security Incident (as defined at 45 CFR § 164.304) any Red Flag
(as defined at 16 CFR § 681.2(b)) related to any individual who is the subject of PHI, and any
Breach of Unsecured Protected Health Information ( both as defined at 45 CFR § 164.402 ),
Business Associate shall promptly report such use, disclosure, incident, Red Flag or breach to
Covered Entity. All reports of Breaches shall be made within ten (10) business days of Business
Associate discovering the Breach and shail include the information specified at 45 CFR §
164.410. Business Associate shall mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect known to
it of the use or disclosure of PHI by Business Associate not permitted by this Agreement.
Business Associate shall promptly reimburse Covered Entity all reasonable costs incurred by
Covered Entity with respect to providing notification of and mitigating a Breach involving
Business Associate, including but not limited to printing, postage costs and toll-free hotline costs.

In accordance with 45 CFR S 164.308(b)(2) and 164.502(¢)(1)I), Business Associate shall
ensure that each subcontractor or agent that creates, receives, maintains, or transmits PHI on
behalf of the Business Associate agrees in writing to be bound by the same restrictions, terms and
conditions that apply to Business Associate pursuant to this Agreement.

In accordance with 45 CFR S 164.524 and within fifteen ( 15 ) days or a request by Covered
Entity for access to PHI about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set ( as defined at
45 CFR $164.501 ), Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity such PHI in the
form requested by Covered Entity. If the requested PHI is maintained electronically, Business
Associate shall provide a copy of the PHI in the electronic form and format requested by the
individual, if it is readily producible, or, if not, in a readable electronic form and format as agreed
to by Covered Entity and the individual. In the event that any individual requests access to PHI

12



directly from Business Associate, Business Associate shall within ten { 10 } days forward such
request to Covered Entity. Any denials of access to the PHI requested shall be the responsibility
of Covered Entity.

In accordance with 45 CFR § 164.526 and within fifteen ( 15 ) days of receipt of a request from
Covered Entity for the amendment of an individual's PHI contained in a Designated Record Set {
for so long as the PHI is maintained in the Designated Record Set ), Business Associate shall
provide such information to Covered Entity for amendment and incorporate any such
amendments in the PHI as required by 45 CFR § 164.526. In the event a request for an
amendment is delivered directly to Business Associate, Business Associate shall within ten (10)
days of receiving such request forward the request to Covered Entity.

Except for disclosures of PHI by Business Associate that are excluded from the accounting
obligation as set forth in 45 CFR § 164.528 or regulations issued pursuant to HITECH, Business
Associate shall record for each disclosure the information required to be recorded by covered
entities pursuant to 45 CFR § 164.528. Within twenty ( 20 ) days of notice by Covered Entity to
Business Associate that it has received a request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI,
Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity, or if requested by Covered Entity, to
the individual, the information required to be maintained pursuant to this Paragraph #7. In the
event the request for an accounting is delivered directly to Business Associate, Business
Associate shall within ten(10) days forward such request to Covered Entity.

At Covered Entity's or HHS' request, Business Associate shall make its internal practices, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI available to HHS for purposes of
determining compliance with HIPAA Regulations.

Business Associate is not authorized to use or disclose PHI in a manner that would violate
HIPA A Regulations if done by a Covered Entity, provided that Business Associate may:

a. use the PHI for its proper management and administration and to carry out its legal
responsibilities:

b. disclose PHI for its proper management and administration and to carry out its legal
responsibilities, provided that disclosures are required by law, or Business Associate
obtains reasonable assurances from recipient that PHI will remain confidential and used
or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed
to the recipient, and the recipient notifies Business Associate of any instances of which it
is aware in which the confidentiality of the information has been breached;

¢. use and disclose PHI to report violations-of law to appropriate Federal and State
authorities, consistent with 45 CFR § 164.5020)(1);

d. aggregate the PHI in its possession with the Protected Health Information of other
covered entities that Business Associate has in its possession through its capacity as a
business associate to other covered entities, provided that the purpose of such aggregation

13



is to provide Covered Entity with data analysis relating to the health care operations of
Covered Entity; and

e. use PHI to create de-identified information, provided that the identification conforms to
the requirements of 45 CFR § 164.514(b).

10. Tf Business Associate conducts standard transmissions (as defined in 45 CFR Part 160 ) for or on

1.

12.

13.

behalf of Covered Entity, Business Associate will comply and will require by written contract
each agent or contractor  including any subcontractor ) involved with the conduct of such
standard transactions to comply with the applicable requirement of the HIPAA Regulations (as set
forth at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 162 ). Business Associate will not enter into, or permit its agents or
contractors (including subcontractors ) to enter into, any trading partner agreement in connection
with the conduct of standard transaction for or on behalf of Covered Entity that: (i) changes the
definition, data condition, or use of a data element or segment in a standard transaction; (ii) adds
any data elements or segments to the maximum defined data set; (iii) use any code or data
element that is marked "not used” in the standard transactions's implementation specification or is
not in the standard transaction's implementation specification; or (iv) changes the meaning or
intent of the standard transaction's implementation specification. Business Associate agrees to
participate in any test modification conducted by Covered Entity in accordance with HIPAA
Regulations.

This Agreement shall be effective as of the Effective day and shall remain in effect until the
Service Agreement is terminated or expires. Either party may terminate this Agreement and the
Service Agreement effective immediately if it determines that the other party has breached a
material provision of this Agreement and failed to cure such breach within thirty (30) days of
being notified by the other party of the breach. If the non-breaching party determines that cure is
not possible, such party may terminate this Agreement and the Service Agreement effective
immediately upon written notice to the other party. If termination is not feasible, the
non-breaching party shall report the breach to HHS. The parties understand and agree that
termination of this Agreement shall constitute a default by Business Associate under the Service
Agreement.

Upon termination of this Agreement, Business Associate shall either return or destroy, at no cost
to Covered Entity all PHI that Business Associate still maintains in any form. Business Associate
shall not retain copies of such PHI. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent that it is not
feasible to return or destroy such PHI, the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall survive
termination of this Agreement, and Business Associate shall only use or disclose such PHI solely
tor such purpose or purposes which prevented the return or destruction of such PHI.

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create any rights or remedies in any third parties
or any agency relationship between the parties. To the extent Business Associate is acting
as a business associate under HIPAA Regulations, Business Associate shall be subject to
the penalty provisions specified in HITECH. Upon the effective date of any final regulation or
amendment to final regulations promulgated by HHS with respect to PHI, this Agreement
will be deemed automatically amended such that the obligations imposed on the parties remain in
compliance with such regulations. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall override

and control any conflicting term or condition of any agreement between the Macon

14



County and Business Associate with respect to Services including the Service
Agreement, and all non-conflicting terms and conditions shall remain in full force and
effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement.

COVERED ENTITY
MACON COUNTY

By:
Macon County Manager, Derek Roland

COVERED ENTITY

MACON COUNTY SHERIFF
By:
Robert Holland, Macon County Sheriff

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

ABT Secure Solutions, LL.C, a North
Carolina LL.C

By:
Travis Hedden, Director of Operations

15






7.

certification is revoked, this Agreement shall terminate immediately. In the event
the Contract is terminated, Client shall pay Provider the outstanding amount for
work performed in accordance with the terms of this Contract through the
effective date of termination.

Provider may terminate the contract for any reason and without cause or penalty
upon written notice to Client. Notice shall be served by registered mail, certified
mail, or by other means.

Insurance. Provider agrees to keep and maintain for the duration of this Contract,
including but not limited to commercial general liability, automobile liability, as
is necessary to provide coverage for losses and liabilities arising out of the acts
and/or omissions of Provider in the performance of this Contract. Insurance
coverages shall be in the amounts that are acceptable to Client, the minimum of
which shall not be less than the following:

a. Automobile liability insurance:

i) Vehicles with a capacity of up to 10 seats: $ 500,000.00
combined single limit coverage per occurrence.

b. Commercial General Liability: not less than $1,000,000.00

This is a material term to this contract the breach of which will entitle the Client to
terminate this Contract immediately and without penalty. Provider shall furnish
Client with certificates of insurance for each type of insurance described herein, with
Client named as an additional insured on all coverages. In the event of cancellation,
substantial changes or nonrenewal, Provider shall give Client at least thirty (30) days
prior written notice, and cause insurance carrier to notify Client in advance of
cancellation or termination of coverage.

Indemnification. Provider agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Client and its
respective officers, employees and agents from and against any and all claims, losses,
damages, liabilities, costs, expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees), judgments,
or obligations (collectively, "Claims"), arising from or in connection with Provider's
negligent acts/omissions or willful misconduct, including those of its officials,
officers, or employees in the performance of this Contract.

To the extent allowed by North Carolina law, Client agrees to indemnify and hold
harmless Provider and its respective officers, employees and agents from and against
any and all claims, losses, damages, liabilities, costs, expenses (including reasonable
attorney's fees) judgments, or obligations (collectively, "Claims"), arising from or in
connection with Client's negligent acts/omissions or willful misconduct, including
those of its officials, officers, or employees in the performance of this Contract.



8.

Immunity from Liability. The provisions of N.C. Gen. Stat. §§122C-210.1 and 122C-

251 shall apply.

Provider’s Responsibilities.

.

Provider shall be fully licensed and/or certified as may be required by state,
federal or local laws and regulations in order to provide non-emergency
transportation services under this Contract,

Provider and its drivers shall comply with all state, federal or local laws, or
ordinances, codes, rules or regulations governing performance of this Contract,
including but not limited to all North Carolina laws pertaining to transportation of
a respondent under involuntary commitment proceedings.

Provider shall provide all drivers, attendants, vehicles and equipment necessary
for the performance of this Contract. Provider will be responsible for the
assignment, control, supervision and compensation of its drivers and attendants
and insure that each complies with all North Carolina laws pertaining to
transportation of a respondent under involuntary commitment proceedings.

Provider shall select drivers based on the criteria set forth in Provider’s Standard
Operating Procedure, which includes but is not limited to, background checks and
testing for controlled substances.

Provider and its drivers shall participate in the training for persons designated to
provide transportation and custody as set forth in the County’s adopted
involuntary commitment transportation agreement; as amended, and/or the
LME/MCO’s community crisis services plan, as required N.C. Gen. Stat.
122C-202.2(a)(3).

Provider and its drivers shall safely transport Participants in accordance with
federal and state law, Provider’s Standard Operating Procedure, Client’s
involuntary commitment transportation agreement and the LME/MCO’s
community crisis services plan.

Provider shall abide by the accident procedure standards set forth in Provider’s
Standard Operating Procedure.

Provider shall ensure that all of its drivers and attendants are at all times properly
licensed for the vehicle hefshe is operating, qualified and fit for duty to provide
services at the time services are provided.

Provider shall provide vehicles which are to be used in the performance of this
Contract which meet federal and state operating and maintenance standards for
the vehicle.

Provider shall not divulge any confidential information of Participants obtained
by Client without the written consent of Client or except as required by a court of
law or state or federal law. Provider shall take all necessary steps to safeguard the
confidentiality of such information in conformance with federal and state statutes
and regulations.



k. Provider agrees to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (“HIPAA™ and “HITECH™), when and if applicable, during
the performance of this Contract.

1. Provider agrees to maintain all fiscal records relating to this Contract in a manner
so as to clearly document Provider’s performance. Provider shall retain and keep
accessible all the fiscal and other records for a minimum of three (3) years
following final payment and termination of this Agreement, or until the
conclusion of any controversy related to this Agreement, whichever is later.

m. To the extent feasible, Provider shall cause its drivers to dress in plain clothes and
travel in unmarked vehicles.

n. To the extent possible, Provider shall cause its drivers to advise respondents in
involuntary commitment proceedings when taking them into custody that they are
not under arrest and have not committed a crime, but are being taken into custody
and transported to receive treatment and for their own safety and that of others.

o. Provider, in providing transportation of a respondent in an involuntary
commitment proceeding, shall provide a driver who is the same sex as the
respondent.

10. Client’s Responsibilities.

a. Client shall provide Provider a copy of the involuntary commitment
transportation agreement, as adopted by the County, and the LME/MCO
community crisis services plan, in accordance with N.C. Gen. Stat. 122C-251.
Client shall ensure Provider is designated as an entity to provide all or parts of
the custody and transportation required under N.C. Gen. Stat. 122C-3 et seq.

b. Client shall determine and verify Participant’s eligibility prior to scheduling or
submitting non-emergency transportation requests to Provider.

c. Client shall schedule reservations and/or submit daily reservation requests to
Provider via telephone or email which complies with HIPPA and HITECH.

d. Client shall comply with all federal, state or local laws or ordinances, codes,
rules or regulations governing the performance of this Contract.

e. Client shall provide Provider with all information needed for transportation of
Participant, including but not limited to, time and location of pick-up, location
of drop-off, identification of Participant, and known medical information of
Participant which may atfect Participant while in transport.

f. Client shall not request transportation services by Provider for Participants
deemed violent and/or require restraint during transportation. Client shall not
request transportation services by Provider that require overnight housing of
Participant.

g. Client agrees to provide Provider advance notice of at least 30 Minutes prior
to a requested pick up time of a Participant.



11.

12.

13.

h. Client shall provide Provider with all necessary paperwork and/or documents
necessary for the transportation of the individual.

i. Client shall fill out an inventory form of any items transported with
Participant.

Entire Agreement. This Contract contains the entire agreement between the parties.

Severability. Should any provision or provisions contained in this Contract be
declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be void, unenforceable or illegal,
such provision or provisions shall be severable and the remaining provisions hereof
shall remain in full force and effect.

Governing Law. This Contract is entered into in North Carolina and shall be

construed under the statutes and laws of North Carolina.

14. Assignability. This Contract is not assignable by either party without the prior

15.

16.

17.

18.

written consent of the other party.

Amendments. This Contract may be amended with the consent of both parties, in

writing.

Notices. Any notices required pursuant to the terms of this Contract shall be sent by
registered mail, certified mail, or hand-delivery to the principal place of business of
each of the parties hereto as specified below:

Provider: Western Carolina Public Safety L1.C/dba
Sheriff Transport Service 64 Sloan Industrial
Park Suite 93 Franklin, NC 28734

Client: Macon County Sheriff: Robert Holland 1820
Lakeside Drive
Franklin, NC 28734; and

Macon County Manager: Derck Roland
5 West Main Street
Franklin, NC 28734

Business Associate Agreement. CLIENT and PROVIDER shall simultaneously with
the execution of this Non-Emergency Transportation Services Contract enter into a
Business Associate Agreement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C.

Non-Exclusive Contractual Arrangement. Nothing herein shall be construed to be an
exclusive transportation contract whereby Provider is entitled to handle all non-
emergency transportation needs of the Client.



19.

20.

21.

22.

Express Condition to Contract. This Non-Emergency Transportation Services
Contract is made EXPRESSLY CONDITIONED UPON Client being able to first
secure amendments which are satisfactory to Client to the Memorandum of
Transportation Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit D.

Joinder By Macon County Sheriff. The Macon County Sheriff has joined in the
entry and execution of this Medical Services Contract to signify his agreement and
approval of the same and all parties hereto specifically agree that the Macon County
Sheriff is an additional intended beneficiary of this Medical Services Contract.

Independent Contractor. Provider is an independent contractor and none of its
employees shall be considered employees of the Client.

E-Verify. Each Party hereto shall comply with the requirements of Article 2 of
Chapter 64 of the General Statutes. Further, if any party hereto utilizes a
subcontractor, such party shall require the subcontractor to comply with the
requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General Statutes.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank — signatures on following page]



IN WITNESS WHEREFORE, the parties hereto have made and executed this Contract as
of the day and year first above written.

Western Carolina Public Safety, LLC
d/b/a Sheriff's Transport Service, PROVIDER

By:
Name:
Authorized Member/Manager

MACON COUNTY, CLIENT PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE

M t iff: .. ey
acon County Sheriff: Robert Holland This instrument has been pre-audited in the

manner required by the Local Government

By: Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

Robert Holland, Macon County Sheriff

This the day of ,20

Macon County Manager: Derek Roland

By:

Derck Roland Macon County Finance Officer

County Manager
ATTEST:

(COUNTY SEAL)

Mike Decker, Assistant Clerk
Macon County Board of Commissioners



STATE OF

COUNTY OF
I, , a Notary Public for said County and State do hereby
certify that , Member/Manager Western Carolina Public Safety, llc, dba

Sherift's Transport Service, a limited liability company, personally appeared before me this day
and acknowledged that he/she as Member/Manager, being authorized to do so, executed the
foregoing on behalf of the Limited Liability Company.

Witness my hand and official seal this day of , 20
, Notary Public
Notary Public’s printed or typed name
My Commission Expires:
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON
I, , Notary Public for Macon County, North

Carolina, certify that Robert Holland, Sheriff for Macon County, personally appeared before me this
day and acknowledged that he signed the foregoing document.

Witness my hand and official seal this day of , 20
, Notary Public
Notary Public’s printed or typed name
My Commission Expires:
NORTH CAROLINA
MACON COUNTY
I, , Notary Public for Macon County,

North Carolina, certify that Mike Decker, personally came before me this day and acknowledged
that he is the Assistant Clerk of the Board of Commissioners of Macon County and that by
authority duly given and as the act of Macon County, the foregoing instrument was signed in its
name by the County Manager, sealed with its seal and attested by himself such Assistant Clerk to
the Board of Commissioners.

Witness my hand and official seal this day of , 20

, Notary Public

Notary Public’s printed or typed name
My Commission Expires:




EXHIBIT A — SCOPE OF WORK

Provider, as an independent contractor, shall safely and timely provide non-emergency
transportation services, by ground, of Participants upon the request of Client within the State
of North Carolina or wherever required, as follows:

Provider will notify Client within 15 minutes of the request whether Provider is able to provide the
requested services. Provider agrees that normal service hours are Monday through Friday 7am to
10pm. Ali calls for service after 10pm are subject to next day service is not an urgent requirement.
All calls for service on weekends and holiday are subject to driver availability, and a waiting period
may qualify if no transporters are available to to respond under normal response protocols. Dispatch
will notify client of any delays or rescheduling needed.

Provider agrees to notify Client at the time a Participant is picked up by Provider at requested
location, dropped off at requested location and at any unscheduled stops during transportation of
Participant.

Provider agrees to notify Client of any accidents and/or medical emergencies during
transportation of Participant, as soon as practicable.

Provider agrees that drivers and attendants will wear/display proper identification at all times
during transportation of Participant.



EXHIBIT B - RATE SHEET

Non-Emergency Medical Transportation

Hourly rate per person $27.00/hour for time driver is actually working
Mileage rate $ 0.65/mile
Prisoner Transportation $29.00/hour

$0.65/mile

Holiday Rate 1.5 Times hourly rate

-10-



EXHIBIT C

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON

HIPAA BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

This HIP AA Business Associate Agreement ( the “ Agreement”) is effective as Tuly Ist,
2021 ( the “Effective Date” ) by and between Macon County and Macon County Sheriff
hereinafter referred to as ( “Covered Entity” ) and Western Carolina Public Safety , LLC , a North
Carolina LLC hereinafter referred to as ( “Business Associate™ ).

WHEREAS, Business Associate may maintain, transmit, create or receive data for or from
Covered Entity that constitutes Protected Health Information ( as defined at 45 CFR § 160.103)
to perform tasks on behalf of Covered Entity; and

WHEREAS, Covered Entity is or may be subject to the requirements of 42 U.S.C. 1320d
el seq. enacted by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 ( “HIPAA”),
the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act ( “HITECH” ) and the
implementing regulations set forth at 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 ( “HIPAA Regulations” ).
As used herein, “PHI” refers to Protected Health Information maintained, transmitted, created or
received by Business Associate for or from Covered Entity; and

WHEREAS, to the extent required by the HIPPA Regulations and applicable State Law,
Business Associate is or may be directly subject to certain privacy and security obligations and
penalty provisions of HIPAA, HITECH, the HIPAA Regulations and State Law.

NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

l. Business Associate may use and disclose PHI only as expressly permitted or required by
this Agreement or as required by law. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI as
required to perform its obligations under a Medical Services Contract between Macon
County and Business Associate ( “Service Agreement” ), a copy of which is attached to
this Agreement, to perform certain services as described in the Service Agreement,
provided that Business Associate shall not use or disclose PHI in any manner that would
constitute a violation of HIPAA Regulations if done by Covered Entity. Without limiting
the generality of the foregoing, Business Associate shall not sell PHI or use or disclose PHI
for the purposes of marketing or fundraising, as defined and proscribed in the HIPAA
Regulations, HITECH and applicable State Law. Business Associate shall limit its uses
and disclosures of, and requests for, PHI (I) when practical, to the information making up
limited data ( as set forth at 45 CFR § 164.514 ); and (ii) in all other cases subject to the
requirements of 45 CFR § 164.502(b), to the minimum amount of PHI necessary to
accomplish the intended purpose of the use, disclosure or request. To the extent Covered
Entity notifies Business Associate of a restriction request granted by Covered Entity that
would limit Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI, Business Associate will comply
with the restriction. To the extent Business Associate is to carry out an obligation of



Covered Entity under the HIPAA Regulations, Business Associate shall comply with the
requirements of HIPAA Regulations that apply to Covered Entity in the performance of
such obligation.

Business Associate agrees to use and maintain reasonable and appropriate administrative,
technical and physical safeguards to protect PHI from uses or disclosures not permitted by
this Agreement, including, but not limited to, maintaining policies and procedures to detect,
prevent or mitigate identity theft based on PHI or information derived from PHI. In
addition, Business Associate agrees to comply with the applicable requirements of 45 CFR
Part 164, subpart C of HIPAA Regulations with respect to electronic PHI and any guidance
issued by the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Serviees ( “HHS” ).
Business Associate specifically agrees to employ multiple security mechanisms to ensure
the confidentiality, integrity and availability of all electronic PHI, including, but not limited
to, authentication controls, authorization controls, audit controls and encryption.

To the extent Business Associate becomes aware of or discovers any use or disclosure of
PHI in violation of this Agreement, any Security Incident ( as defined at 45 CFR § 164.304)
any Red Flag ( as defined at 16 CFR § 681.2(b) ) related to any individual who is the subject
of PHI, and any Breach of Unsecured Protected Health Information ( both as defined at 45
CFR § 164.402 ), Business Associate shall promptly report such use, disclosure, incident,
Red Fiag or breach to Covered Entity. All reports of Breaches shall be made within ten
(10) business days of Business Associate discovering the Breach and shall inciude the
information specitied at 45 CFR § 164.410. Business Associate shall mitigate, to the extent
practicable, any harmful effect known to it of the use or disclosure of PHI by Business
Associate not permitted by this Agreement. Business Associate shall promptly reimburse
Covered Entity all reasonable costs incurred by Covered Entity with respect to providing
notification of and mitigating a Breach involving Business Associate, including but not
limited to printing, postage costs and toll-free hotline costs.

In accordance with 45 CFR § 164.308(b)(2) and 164.502(e)(1)(]), Business Associate shall
ensure that each subcontractor or agent that creates, receives, maintains, or transmits PHI
on behalf of the Business Associate agrees in writing to be bound by the same restrictions,
terms and conditions that apply to Business Associate pursuant to this Agreement.

In accordance with 45 CFR § 164.524 and within fifteen ( 15 ) days or a request by Covered
Entity for access to PHI about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set ( as
defined at 45 CFR §164.501 ), Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity
such PHI in the form requested by Covered Entity. If the requested PHI is maintained
clectronically, Business Associate shall provide a copy of the PHI in the electronic form
and format requested by the individual, if it is readily producible, or, if not, in a readable
electronic form and format as agreed to by Covered Entity and the individual. In the event
that any individual requests access to PHI directly from Business Associate, Business
Associate shall within ten ( 10 ) days forward such request to Covered Entity. Any denials
of access to the PHI requested shall be the responsibility of Covered Entity.



In accordance with 45 CFR § 164.526 and within fifteen ( 15 ) days of receipt of a request
from Covered Entity for the amendment of an individual’s PHI contained in a Designated
Record Set ( for so long as the PHI is maintained in the Designated Record Set ), Business
Associate shall provide such information to Covered Entity for amendment and incorporate
any such amendments in the PHI as required by 45 CFR § 164.526. In the event a request
for an amendment is delivered directly to Business Associate, Business Associate shall
within ten (10 ) days of receiving such request forward the request to Covered Entity.

Except for disclosures of PHI by Business Associate that are excluded from the accounting
obligation as set forth in 45 CFR § 164.528 or regulations issued pursuant to HITECH,
Business Associate shall record for cach disclosure the information required to be recorded
by covered entities pursuant to 45 CFR § 164.528. Within twenty ( 20 ) days of notice by
Covered Entity to Business Associate that it has received a request for an accounting of
disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity, or if
requested by Covered Entity, to the individual, the information required to be maintained
pursuant to this Paragraph #7. In the event the request for an accounting is delivered
directly to Business Associate, Business Associate shall within ten ( 10 ) days forward such
request to Covered Entity.

At Covered Entity’s or HHS’ request, Business Associate shall make its internal practices,
books and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI available to HHS for purposes
of determining compliance with HIPAA Regulations.

Business Associate is not authorized to use or disclose PHI in a manner that would violate
HIPAA Regulations if done by a Covered Entity, provided that Business Associate may:

a. use the PHI for its proper management and administration and to carry out its legal
responsibilities;
b. disclose PHI for its proper management and administration and to carry out its legal

responsibilities, provided that disclosures are required by law, or Business
Associate obtains reasonable assurances from recipient that PHI will remain
confidential and used or turther disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose
for which it was disclosed to the recipient, and the recipient notifies Business
Associate of any instances of which it is aware in which the confidentiality of the
information has been breached;

c. use and disclose PHI to report violations of law to appropriate Federal and State
authorities, consistent with 45 CFR § 164.502()(1);
d. aggregate the PHI in its possession with the Protected Health Information of other

covered entities that Business Associate has in its possession through its capacity
as a business associate to other covered entities, provided that the purpose of such
aggregation is to provide Covered Entity with data analysis relating to the health
care operations of Covered Entity; and



10.

11.

12.

e. use PHI to create de-identified information, provided that the identification
conforms to the requirements of 45 CFR § 164.514(b).

If Business Associate conducts standard transmissions ( as defined in 45 CFR Part 160 )
for or on behalf of Covered Entity, Business Associate will comply and will require by
written contract each agent or contractor ( including any subcontractor ) involved with the
conduct of such standard transactions to comply with the applicable requirement of the
HIPAA Regulations ( as set forth at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 162 ). Business Associate will
not enter into, or permit its agents or contractors { including subcontractors ) to enter into,
any trading partner agreement in connection with the conduct of standard transaction for
or on behalf of Covered Entity that: (i) changes the definition, data condition, or use of a
data clement or segment in a standard transaction; (ii) adds any data elements or segments
to the maximum defined data set; (iii) use any code or data element that is marked “not
used” in the standard transactions’s implementation specification or is not in the standard
transaction’s implementation specification; or (iv) changes the meaning or intent of the
standard transaction’s implementation specification. Business Associate agrees to
participate in any test modification condueted by Covered Entity in accordance with
HIPAA Regulations,

This Agreement shall be effective as of the Effective day and shall remain in effect until

the Service Agreement is terminated or expires. Either party may terminate this Agreement

and the Service Agreement effective immediately if it determines that the other party has

breached a material provision of this Agreement and failed to cure such breach within thirty -
(30 ) days of being notified by the other party of the breach. If the non-breaching party

determines that cure is not possible, such party may terminate this Agreement and the

Service Agreement effective immediately upon written notice to the other party. If

termination is not feasible, the non-breaching party shall report the breach to HHS. The

parties understand and agree that termination of this Agreement shall constitute a default

by Business Associate under the Service Agreement.

Upon termination of this Agreement, Business Associate shall either return or destroy, at
no cost to Covered Entity all PHI that Business Associate still maintains in any form.
Business Associate shall not retain copies of such PHI. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to
the extent that it is not feasible to return or destroy such PHI, the terms and provisions of
this Agreement shall survive termination of this Agreement, and Business Associate shall
only use or disclose such PHI solely for such purpose or purposes which prevented the
return or desiruction of such PHI.

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create any rights or remedies in any third
parties or any agency relationship between the patties. To the extent Business Associate
is acting as a business associate under HIPAA Regulations, Business Associate shall be
subject to the penalty provisions specified in HITECH. Upon the effective date of any final
regulation or amendment to final regulations promulgated by HHS with respect to PHI,
this Agreement will be deemed automatically amended such that the obligations imposed
onthe parties remain in compliance with such regulations. The terms and conditions of this
Agreement shall override and control any conflicting term or condition of any agreement



between the Macon County and Business Associate with respect to Services including the
Service Agreement, and all non-conflicting terms and conditions shall remain in full force
and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement.

COVERED ENTITY
MACON COUNTY

By:
Macon County Manager, Derek Roland

COVERED ENTITY

MACON COUNTY SHERIFF
By:
Robert Holland, Macon County Sheriff

BUSTINESS ASSOCIATE

- Western Carolina Public Safety, LLC, a North
Bwrolina LLC

James Anello, Owner




Exhibit D

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

* MACON COUNTY
MEMORANDUM OF TRANSPORTATION AGREEMENT

THIS MEMORANDUM OF TRANSPORTATION AGREEMENT (“Transportation
Agreement™) is made and entered as of the 3™ day of August, 2019 (“Effective Date”), among
the law enforcement agencies listed below and the Macon County Sheriff’'s Office
(“Sheriff's Office™) (collectively, “the Parties”, individually “Party”).

WHEREAS, N.C.G.5.§122C-251, Custody and Transportation for Involuntary
Commitments, was amended and is effective October 1,2019; and

WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. §122C.251(g) requires the governing body of a eity or
county adopt a plan known as an “involuntary commitment transportation agreement” or
“(ransportation. agreement” for the custody and transportation of respondents in involuntary
commitment proceedings; and

WHEREAS, once adopted, the Transportation Agreement must be submitted to: the
Magistrates in Macon County; the Macon County Clerk of Court; the Division of Mental Health
Development Disabilities, and Substance Abuses Services; and the Local Management Entity-

' Managed Care Organization (“LME/MCQ") that serves Macon County.

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of mutual promises to each other as
hereinafter set forth, the Parties mutually agree as follows;

1. After a Macon County Magistrate issues an involuntary commitment order (“IVC
Order”) and the Magistrate contacts the local law enforcement agency in the jurisdiction
where the respondent resides or is physically located, an officer or deputy with the
jurisdiction shall retrieve the IVC Order from the Magistrate. :

a. If the respondent is a resident of the municipality or is physically taken into
custody in the municipal limits, the municipality is responsible for transportation
of the respondent in accordance with North Carolina General Statutes Chapter
122C.

b. If the respondent is a resident of the county outside any municipal limit or is
physically taken into custody outside municipal limits, the county is responsible
for {ransportation of the respondent in accordance with North Carolina General
Statutes Chapter 122C,

2. | The officer or deputy shall attempt to locate the respondent at the address provided on the
IVC Order or where the magistrate believes the subject is physically located.

{C5: 00063866.00CX } Page I of 5



3. Upon location, the officer or deputy shall take respondent into custody and transport
respondent to Angel Medical Center in Franklin, NC, or other approved facility. After
the facility has completed its examination of respondent, and if further care is required,
the facility will locate a facility for respondent’s future care.

4. The Sheriff’s Office shall respond to the facility for respondent’s transport to any facility
in North Carolina, identified by the initial facility (who conducted the initial evaluation),
for respondent’s future care,

5. Upon completion of the initial evaluation, if the facility determines respondent is not in
need of further treatment, an officer or deputy with the agency that took respondent into
custody shall return respondent to the address in the IVC Order or allow for other
transportation atrangements of respondent be made.

6. Each party fo this Transportation Agreement agrees it is responsible for its own acts
and/or omissions and those of its officials, employees, representative and agents in
carrying out the terms of this Transportation Agreement and the results thereof to the
extent authorization by law and shall not be responsible for the acts and/or omissions of
any other Party and the results thereof.

7. It is understood and agreed that each Party’s liability may be limited by the provisions or
other immunity law applicable to each law enforcement agency. Parties understand and
agree that each Party has not waived its rights, immunities and protections provided by
law, Nothing contained in this Transportation Agreement shall waive or amend, nor shall
be construed to waive or amend any defense or immunity that either Party, their
respective officials and employees, has or may have. '

8. This Transportation Agreement is not intended to and will not constitute, create, give rise
to, or otherwise recognize a joint venture, partnership, corporation or other formal
business association or organization of any kind among the Parties. Moreover, the rights
and the obligations of the Parties under this Transportation Agreement will be only those
expressly set forth in this Transportation Agreement.

9. This Agreement may be amended by written agreement of the Parties.

10. Each term, condition, or covenant herein is subject to and shall be construed in
accordance with the North Carolina law and any applicable federal law.

11. This Agreement may be executed in two (2) or more counterparts each of which will be
deemed to be an original,

IN WITNESS W‘HEREOF, the law enforcement agencies and the Sheriff"s Office, acting
under authority of their respective goveming bodies as evidenced by the authorized signatures of

such governing bodies set forth below, have caused this Memorandum of Transportation
Agreement to be duly executed as set forth below.

 {C5: 00063866.00CX ) Page 2 of 5



COUNTY OF MACON

By: \ ‘:*?%

James Tate, Chair of the Macon County Board of Comnmissioners

(SEAL)

Dex ek Roland, Macon County C{erk
F(j)@ OF MACON

ert Holland Shen¥ of Macon County

_ % (SEAL)
ATTEST: /

Derek Roland, Macon County Clerk
Date; . 4..20.-19

Date: Adn .19

By:

{C5: 00053856.DOCK } Page 3 of 5



TOWN Wm\
By:

Bab Seott, Mayor of Franklin

(SEAL)

ATTEST:

Travis Tallent, Franklin, Town Clerk
* Date: Q~ Y- lq

~David Adars cmefofpramcbn'ponce :
(SEAL)

ATTEST: S
Travis Tallent, Franklin Town Clerk

Date:___ - U -i4

Page 4 of §



TOWN QF HIGK MS/Q
By: £
Patrick Taylor, %yor of Highlands

f:::s)l"fj{zﬂm-j@'ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁw

Gibby Shahecn, Highlands, Town Clerk

Date: WE_A

TOWN OF HIGHLANDS

vy CEy 1O [ e L2

B?{Hanell Chlcfofl-ilghla s Police

Aot ﬂ% T
ATTBST: -/Cﬁ\

Gibby Shaheen, Highlands Town Clerk

Date: ‘&M@ﬁ

Page 5 of §



















































in a place that turns in to California or New York and encouraged the
board to keep this county free of morale decay.

(B)Rebecca Tipton shared her objection to the display at the
library. She stated there were 15 books out and although she
did not object to the books being in the library, she did object to
them being displayed in a public area accessible to children.
She stated that parents should have discretion over what topics
they address and how they address those with their children.
Ms. Tipton commented that transgenderism has really been
pushing our culture since 2015 and she finds the championing
of it problematic, and as a parent is not comfortable with her
child going to the library and picking up a book about an
individual person’s journey with transgenderism including the
political and medical aspects. Ms. Tipton closed by saying she
believed in personal choice rather than pushing these issues out
and putting them on display in a public place.

(C)Steve Connell requested that the board members consider
when they allocate funding how the monies are spent. He
commented that the display at the library was better left in a
location for adults to look at and not out for young children to
see.

(D)Evan Lampkin spoke about the proposed skate park that has
been approved by the Town of Franklin. Mr. Lampkin stated he
and other youth have participated in some fundraising activities
and have raised approximately $2,000, and JE Dunn
Construction ~ the company currently building the new hospital
— has donated their time to construct the park. He requested
that the board support the park by donating money, equipment,
etc. and informed the board that the town had approved a
building site at the Jaycee Park.

(E) Tim Shaw shared that he is the parent of two teenage
skateboarders and that it is not unusual to get a phone call
frothem indicating they are going to “skate town.” He expressed
his concerns about their safety and the legal aspects,
emphasizing that kids need a place to do so safely and legally.
He stated he had come to ask for the board’s help and requested
they step up and help with a monetary donation, materials, etc.,
and explained that the proposed park is not just for the town
but for all of Macon County. Mr. Shaw referenced skate
boarding as an Olympic sport which teaches bravery, tenacity
and finesse, and encouraged the board members to be
supportive and consider how they could change the future of an
individual child with the ability to pursue an Olympic sport if
they chose. Commissioner Beale asked about the park at First

Minutes
07.13.21
Page 2 of 8



United Methodist Church and Mr. Shaw replied it was great for
beginners but not for someone with a little more advanced skill.

(F) Jeff Lee stated he was here in support of the broadband expansion.

(G)Brittney Lofthouse began by stating that she was speaking as a
resident, not as a reporter. She indicated she had planned to speak
about a different topic but after hearing the previous speakers
comments about the display at the library, she was choosing to speak
to that. Ms. Lofthouse stated she was disappointed that she did not
know about the display at the library and had she known she would
have celebrated Pride month and gone to see the display. Ms. Lofthouse
shared that she has no fear for her children to be subjected to this
display or books and that she applauds the library and is sorry they
are not here to defend themselves. She indicated she has a relative who
is a member of the LGBTQ community and is very passionate about
this topic. Ms. Lofthouse stated there has been too much persecution
and bullying around these topics as well as Macon County lives lost to
suicide because they did not feel included or know who to turn to. She
ended in expressing thanks to whoever did the display.

ADDITIONS, ADJUSTMENTS TO AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: Upon
a motion by Commissioner Higdon, seconded by Commissioner Shields, the
board voted unanimously to approve the agenda, as adjusted, as follows:

* To add Iltem 11G under New Business, Nantahala Library, per
Commissioner Higdon, as a follow-up to his meeting with the community
members the previous evening (July 12).

e To add Item 11H under New Business, Electoral District Brief Discussion,
per Commissioner Higdon.

e To remove ltem 11D, Resolution Exempting Architectural Services for
former National Guard Armory renovation and improvements, as it would
be better to discuss this in August or September, per Mr. Roland.

REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS:

(A)Medicaid Transformation - Shelly Foreman, Community Relations
Regional Director for Vaya Health, thanked the board for allowing her
to attend and present. She reviewed and talked through a PowerPoint
presentation explaining the goals and transition plan for Vaya Health
to manage whole person care for those with more acute level behavioral
health needs in the region, now referred to as a Tailored Plan. She
shared that, as of July 1, 2021, Medicaid participants began receiving
information on the transition process and how to select a plan. Ms.
Foreman explained that Vaya Health had submitted their Request for
Funding (RFA) and there has been a delay at the state level in
announcing awards, but, she hopes Vaya will hear later this week with
anticipation of a successful award of the tailored plan. Commissioner

Minutes
07.13.21
Page 3 of 8









that with reducing her budget to the bare minimum and including their
fundraising efforts and donations, she would need $110,000 to continue
operating. Ms. Ashe stated that she is working with partners at both the
state and federal level to restore funding, but that process will take three
to four years. She indicated that KIDS Place could raise $30,000 to
$35,000 through their planned fundraising initiatives, leaving them
approximately $75,000 — which she is requesting from the board. During
discussion among the board members, Ms. Ashe stated that it costs
approximately $5,000 to train an interviewer on staff, but to contract that
service out would cost approximately $1,200 per interview and KIDS Place
has conducted 43 interviews so far this year. She stated it would cost
approximately $2,000 for each medical exam if conducted somewhere else
and they have conducted 21 exams in the past six months. She stated
therapy sessions would cost about $120 per hour and KIDS Place has
saved the county about $21,000 by being able to do those on site. Board
members discussed options, including allocating all or a portion of the
Community Funding Pool funds to KIDS Place, which would eliminate
funding opportunities for the other agencies funded through that program.
Following further discussion, Commissioner Beale made a motion,
seconded by Commissioner Shields, to allocate $75,000 from fund balance
to KIDS Place as an emergency request. The motion was approved by a
vote of 3-2, with Commisioners Beale, Tate and Shields in favor and with
Commissioners Higdon and Young opposing.

(G}Nantahala Library — Commissioner Higdon stated that he had attended a
meeting last night (July 12) in which members of the Nantahala
community were requesting an update on the plan for the library and the
building that was purchased by the county. Commissioner Higdon stated
that the board needs to make a decision about whether the library is
moving or not and bring resolution to this issue that has been ongoing for
years. Commissioner Beale read a letter from the Macon County Library
Board of Trustees requesting that the commissioners prioritize building a
new library building on the school property. Discussion among members
included getting quotes for demolishing the building on the recently
purchased property and constructing a new facility, having county
maintenance remove debris from the building and clean-up the
surroundings, broadband capabilities and wireless options for the
location, and getting input from the Macon County Board of Education
about keeping the library on school property. Following discussion,
Commissioner Higdon made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Young,
to allocate $5,000 from contingency to allow county maintenance staff to
clean-up the property and to cover the associated landfill fees for disposal
of the waste. The motion was approved by a 4-1 vote, with Commissioner
Beale opposing.

Minutes
07.13.21
Page 6 of 8










































MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT #

FROM: FINANCE

DEPARTMENT: TRANSIT

EXPLANATION: Roll funds forward from FY21 for facility and
state allocated vax funds

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE
11-3840-417900 Fund Balance Appropriation $ 98,630.00
11-3570-435109 NCDOT - CTP CAPITAL $ 319,648.00
11-4935-569300 New Facility $ 399,560.00
11-4935-550002 Salary - PT $ 17,384.00
11-4935-550201 Medicare $ 1,334.00

REQUESTED BY DEPARTMENT HEAD:

RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE OFFICER: M/M Qﬂ/%?"g@

APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER:
ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:

APPROVED AND ENTERED ON MUNIS DATED:

CLERK:




